Minutes

PETITION HEARING - CABINET MEMBER FOR PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND RECYCLING



23 January 2013

Meeting held at Committee Room 3 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW

	Committee Members Present: Councillors Keith Burrows LBH Officers Present: Steve Austin, Traffic, Parking, Road Safety and Travel Plan Manager Danielle Watson, Democratic Services Officer	
	Also Present: Councillor John Hensley (Agenda Item 2 and 3) Councillors Brian Crowe, Philip Corthorne and John Riley (Agenda Item 4 Councillors Dominic Gilham, Peter Kemp and Paul Harmsworth (Agenda	,
29.	TO CONFIRM THAT THE BUSINESS OF THE MEETING WILL TAKE PLACE IN PUBLIC. (Agenda Item 1)	Action by
	It was confirmed that the meeting would take place in public.	
30.	RESIDENTS' REQUEST FOR TRAFFIC CALMING FOR KINGS COLLEGE ROAD, RUISLIP (Agenda Item 3) One of the petitioners had emailed Democratic Services and the Cabinet Member to notify that they were unable to attend. Councillor Keith Burrows agreed for the petition to be postponed to	Action by
	another hearing but stated that the petition would be heard in the absence of the petitioners if they did not attend a subsequent meeting.	
31.	RESIDENTS' REQUEST FOR A SINGLE YELLOW LINE OR PERMIT PARKING IN BONIFACE ROAD, ICKENHAM (Agenda Item 4)	Action by
	Councillor John Hensley attended as a Ward Councillor in support of the petitioners.	Kevin Urquhart
	Concerns and suggestions from petitioners included the following:	
	 The Buntings, Boniface Road, Ickenham was sheltered housing accommodation and the majority of residents were disabled or elderly. Access to private parking bays was frequently blocked. Some residents had been threatened by people who used the road to park. 	
	 road to park. Commuters and people using the local shops were taking up the available spaces. 	

- There was no problem parking at weekends.
- Would like restricted parking for 1 hour in the morning and 1 hour in the evening.
- Yellow lines would not help as residents relied on regular visits from carers, children and family.
- The bedrooms were located at the front of the properties and residents were often woken up by noise.
- In the event of an emergency residents access would be blocked due to inconsiderate parking.
- Some of the activity that took place on Boniface Road was associated with the local pub.
- Narrowing the footpath would accommodate more parking.
- A bay reserved for carers.

Councillor Hensley spoke in support of the petitioners' request and raised the following issues.

- There was no clear view, some residents wanted a parking management scheme and others wanted yellow lines.
- The Ickenham Parking Management Scheme was proposed to extend to part of Boniface Road and Rectory Way.
- 24 hour parking restrictions would be ideal, although not practical.
- A Parking Management Schemes would allow visitors to park.
- Carers can gain exemption with a carers permit.
- Restrictions should be consistent with the rest of Boniface Road.

Councillor Burrows listened to the concerns of petitioners and responded to the points raised.

The Cabinet Member informed petitioners that some solutions would not be appropriate given the activity associated with The Buntings, Boniface Road. Councillor Burrows advised petitioners that he would change the recommendations laid out in the officers' report. Councillor Burrows explained the importance of returning any future consultation document and to not rely on others to do so. Should the proposed scheme in the other part of Boniface Road be implemented the presence of Civil Enforcement Officers may deter people from parking near The Buntings.

Officers stated that the private parking bays were not enforced as they did not form part of the public highway. Officers understood the need for access in The Buntings and the need to provide parking and would take this into account when designing alternative proposals.

Resolved - That the Cabinet Member:

- Met and discussed with petitioners their request for parking restrictions in the section of Boniface Road outside The Buntings.
- 2. Instructed officers to take into account the activity associated with The Buntings when investigating other solutions in conjunction with Ward Councillors.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

Residents have made a request for changes to be made to the current proposals for 'at any time' waiting restrictions in part of Boniface Road outside The Buntings.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED / RISK MANAGEMENT

The Council could decide to proceed with the double yellow lines proposed for this part of Boniface Road.

32. RESIDENTS' REQUEST FOR RESTRICTED PARKING IN LODORE GREEN, ICKENHAM (Agenda Item 5)

Councillor John Hensley attended as a Ward Councillor in support of the petitioners.

Concerns and suggestions from petitioners included the following:

- Some residents had lived there for 40 years.
- Lodore Green was a cul-de-sac.
- There was an issue when the TfL Low Emission control zone was implemented which by-passed Lodore Green.
- There was a total of 12 properties on the road.
- Did not mind people parking for a couple of hours.
- Did not want vans or lorries parking on their road.
- Would like controlled parking but did not want parking permits.

Councillor Hensley spoke in support of the petitioners' request and raised the following points.

- Lodore Green was not near the Ickenham Parking Management Scheme.
- If a single yellow line was implemented then no one would be able to park there during its operational times.
- A parking management scheme would give residents control of who parked on their road.

Councillor Burrows listened to the concerns of petitioners and responded to the points raised.

Councillor Burrows explained how residents' parking schemes worked and why they have become popular with residents within the Ickenham area and across the Borough. Councillor Burrows informed petitioners that the Council had a legal requirement to consult with residents on such proposals and that there is a process which could take between 12 to 18 months.

Resolved - That the Cabinet Member:

- 1. Met and discussed with petitioners their request for parking restrictions in Lodore Green, Ickenham and;
- 2. Asked officers to add the request to the Council's overall

Action by

Kevin Urquhart

Steve Austin

parking programme for further investigation when resources permit.

3. Instructed officers to liaise with TfL with regards to the Low Emission Zone.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

Although parking schemes are not generally considered for individual roads, due to the isolated location of Lodore Green, the Cabinet Member may decide that a scheme could be considered in advance of a scheme which took in a wider area.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED / RISK MANAGEMENT

These were discussed with petitioners.

33. PETITION FROM THE RUISLIP RESIDENTS' ASSOCIATION OBJECTING TO THE PROPOSED EXTENSION OF LOADING HOURS (Agenda Item 6)

Councillors Brian Crowe, Philip Corthorne and John Riley attended the meeting and spoke as Ward Councillors.

Concerns and suggestions from petitioners included the following:

- There was a problem with large lorries blocking the road.
- Not just one shop was causing the problem.
- Petitioners understood the importance of deliveries and collections.
- That Penalty Charge Notices were not tackling the problem as the company could afford to pay the fines.
- The size of the vehicle should be limited.
- If the loading times were extending from 20 minutes to 40 minutes it would increase disruption on the High Street.
- Deliveries should take place in the morning and collections in the afternoon.
- The service road at the back of the High Street should be utilised for deliveries and collections.
- The lorry drivers are effectively engaging in Anti Social Behaviour by causing this disruption.

All three Ward Councillors spoke and raised the following points:

- Did not want to hamper traders from receiving deliveries.
- Requested that enforcement is increased.
- Extending the loading period would reward bad practice.
- That the rules were being ignored by the drivers carrying out the deliveries and collections.
- That it was important to keep a balance on the High Street.
- Extending the loading time will not help the current situation.
- Deliveries and collections should take place during the early hours of the morning and late at night to lessen the disruption in the day.
- Reducing the size of the bus cage could alleviate some of the

Action by

Kevin Urquhart

Steve Austin

issues.

Smaller delivery vans should be used.

The Cabinet Member listened to petitioners concerns and responded to the points raised.

Councillor Burrows was in agreement with petitioners that loading and unloading should not impact on traffic flow on the High Street. Councillor Burrows was also mindful that High Street, Ruislip was a busy shopping area and there was a need for businesses to accept deliveries and collections to carry out their business. Councillor Burrows suggested that High Street, Ruislip be enforced on a more frequent basis and that those abusing the rules would be issued a Penalty Charge Notice.

Resolved - That the Cabinet Member:

- 1. Considered the petitioners' objection to the proposed extension to the times to load and unload within the loading bays that form part of the High Street, Ruislip Stop & Shop Parking Scheme and;
- 2. Asked officers to take the petition into account including relevant points raised by the petitioners at the petition hearing together with all other representations from the public in the forthcoming report on the consultation for changes to the High Street, Ruislip 'Stop & Shop' parking scheme.
- 3. Instructed officers to discuss more pro-active loading/unloading enforcement on High Street, Ruislip with the Council's Civil Enforcement Officers.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

To allow the Cabinet Member to consider the petition that objects to the changes proposed to the loading facilities close to High Street, Ruislip.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED / RISK MANAGEMENT

These were discussed with petitioners.

34. PETITION OBJECTING TO PROPOSED PARKING RESTRICTIONS IN TAVISTOCK ROAD, YIEWSLEY (Agenda Item 7)

Councillors Dominic Gilham, Peter Kemp and Paul Harmsworth attended as Ward Councillors.

Concerns and suggestions from petitioners included the following:

- COMAG was a long established employer in the Yiewsley area and contributed to over £100k on rates each year.
- The company was a freeholder in Tavistock Road since 1979 and had good relationships with residential neighbours.
- Employs over 170 staff, of which 70 are Hillingdon residents.

Action by

Gordon Hill

Steve Austin

- Agreed with the Statement of Reason behind the scheme 'to restore the balance of parking in favour of residents, visitors and local businesses.'
- The company had explored alternative initiatives to reduce parking pressures on their staff which included flexible working, cycle to work schemes and out of office working.
- Commuters were often taking up the available space.
- The proposed restrictions would have a detrimental impact on their business and may force them to move out of the local area.
- COMAG did not want their business or their staff to be penalised for a problem that is caused by commuters.

All three Ward Councillors spoke and raised the following points:

- There was a public car park located on Brandville Road that provided all day parking for £2.
- That both workers and commuters were taking up the available space leaving residents with no where to park.
- That a parking stress survey would assist with investigations.
- There were only 25 residential homes on Tavistock Road.
- Wanted the scheme to be progressed for the benefit of residents.

The Cabinet Member listened to petitioners concerns and responded to the points raised.

Councillor Burrows explained that the petition would be taken into account in a forthcoming report which would incorporate all representations received during the statutory consultation period. Councillor Burrows sympathised with petitioners but explained that he could not promise that the proposed scheme would not go ahead.

Resolved - That the Cabinet Member:

- 1. Met and discussed with petitioners their request not to implement the proposed parking restrictions in Yiewsley and;
- 2. Asked officers to include the petition request and the outcome of discussions with petitioners in the forthcoming report incorporating all representations received from statutory consultation on the proposed extension to the Yiewsley (Y1) Parking Management Scheme.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

Following statutory consultation on parking proposals, all comments received must be considered by the Council before a final decision is made. A report will subsequently be drafted detailing these comments which can include this petition together with the outcome of discussions with the Cabinet Member at the petition hearing.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED / RISK MANAGEMENT

None at this stage.

	The meeting, which commenced at 7pm, closed at 9.05pm.	

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Danielle Watson on 01895 277488. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.